
Thursday, July 14, 2016 Meeting Minutes  
 

1 

 
CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

       DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
MEETING MINUTES 

831 Penniman, Plymouth, MI  48170 
Ph (734) 455-1453     Fax (734) 459-5792 

http://www.downtownplymouth.org 

 
 

 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
 
Thursday, July 14, 2016 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Meeting called to order at 7:02 p.m. by Chairperson Oliver Wolcott.  
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Oliver Wolcott, Chairperson 
Lindsey Lebovitz, Vice Chair 
Dan Dwyer, Mayor 
Dan Amos 
Paul DePalma 
Jim Frisbie 
Penny Flury 
Dan Johnson 
Robert Parent 
Kerri Pollard 
Michele Potter 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Jason Smith 
Frank Yaquinto 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: 
Mike Wright, Plymouth City Commissioner 
Paul Sincock, Plymouth City Manager 
Tony Bruscato, DDA Director 
Sam Plymale, DDA Coordinator 
Wes Graff, Plymouth Community Chamber of Commerce 

http://www.downtownplymouth.org/


Thursday, July 14, 2016 Meeting Minutes  
 

2 

 
Annaka Norris, Rich & Associates 
Cristina Sheppard Decius, POW! Strategies 
Mark Wira, property owner 
Ellen Elliot, Penn Theatre 
 

2. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  
 
Mark Wira, owner of a parcel of property adjacent to the Saxton’s Municipal Parking 
Lot, said that his property is available for purchase. Wira asked if the DDA Board or 
the City of Plymouth has discussed making an offer for his property. 
 
City Manager Paul Sincock said that the city would not make an offer for the property 
at this time. 
 
Ellen Elliot, Penn Theatre, said that having Westborn Market in town is fantastic and 
that the town is hopping since its opening. Elliot said that she believes that the issue 
with parking is that there isn’t a lack of parking, only a lack of convenient parking 
spaces. Elliot said that the DDA should begin to create a plan to renovate and/or add 
to the Central Parking Deck. Elliot said that paid parking will hurt Plymouth and its 
customers. 
 

 
3. BOARD COMMENTS:  

 
Chairperson Wolcott said that he is happy with the new window decals on the 
windows of what is commonly known as the Saxton’s property. 
 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
 

 
A motion was made by Vice Chair Lebovitz and seconded by Director DePalma to 
approve the July14, 2016 regular meeting agenda. 
 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 



Thursday, July 14, 2016 Meeting Minutes  
 

3 

a. A motion was made by Mayor Dwyer and seconded by Director DePalma to 
approve the June 9, 2016, regular meeting minutes. 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOULSY 

 
6. OLD BUSINESS 

 
a. DDA 2016 goals update 
 
Staff Director Bruscato gave an update on the 2016 DDA Goals. 
 
Saxton’s Property - Bruscato said that there is a new tenant at 583 W. Ann Arbor 
Tr.  Bruscato also said the RFP for potential development of the property is due in mid 
August and that several people have expressed interest.  
 
Bruscato said that DDA Staff gathered two quotes on replacement boilers. Staff will 
also gather information on other heating solutions before a decision is made. 
 
Tree Lights – Bruscato said that there is nothing new with tree lighting. 
 
Parking Lot/Alley Improvements – Bruscato said that the construction schedule 
for the alley commonly known as Fleet St. should be available over the next few 
weeks.  
 
Chairperson Wolcott asked about Consumers Energy’s work schedule on the project.  

 
City Manager Sincock said that Consumers Energy would begin their work at the start 
of construction shortly after Fall Festival. 
 
Bruscato said the eight new wayfinding signs for parking have been added to the 
downtown district. 
 
Bruscato said a new parking enforcement officer would be on duty starting in the next 
couple of weeks. The handheld devices are still in use by the officers. 
 
Bruscato said that the St. Joseph Medical Center is adding approximately 25 
employees that would likely be parking in the Central Parking Deck. Medical Center 
staff has inquired about leasing the Central Parking Deck. Bruscato said that DDA Staff 
is looking at having downtown employees potentially use the Christian Science parking 
lot in the future. 
 



Thursday, July 14, 2016 Meeting Minutes  
 

4 

 
 
Kellogg Park Fountain Upgrades – Bruscato said that Marc Russell from Russell 
Designs has indicated that final Kellogg Park upgrade designs would be completed by 
mid August.  
 
Chairperson Wolcott said the committee is crafting a timeline for Plymouth’s 150th 
anniversary celebration. 
 

 
 
b. Paid Parking Study 

 
Annaka Norris from Rich & Associates and Cristina Sheppard-Decius from POW! 
Strategies gave a presentation on developing a plan for paid parking. 
 
Director Frisbie asked about the income generated from a paid parking system. 
 
Norris said that the system should pay for itself and the goal is to have a self-sufficient 
system. At minimum, the system should provide funds towards paying down bond 
debt. 
 
Director Johnson asked about the cash/credit ratio on machines. 
 
Sheppard-Decius said that it varies between communities, but people use credit much 
more than cash. 
 
Director DePalma asked about who provides maintenance to the machines. 
 
Norris said that communities generally hire maintenance crews and have people in-
house that can handle maintenance duties. 
 
City Manager Sincock said that the main goal is to increase compliance. 
 
Ellen Elliot, Penn Theatre, said that a paid parking system would be too complicated 
and that increased compliance can be obtained through other methods. 

 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS  
 
a. DDA Office Lease 



Thursday, July 14, 2016 Meeting Minutes  
 

5 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 
 

 The following Resolution was offered by Director Frisbie and seconded by Vice Chair 
Lebovitz. 
 

WHEREAS The Downtown Development Authority Board of Directors has indicated 
its desire and willingness to keep the DDA office downtown, and 

 
WHEREAS Keeping the DDA office downtown would give better service to 

merchants, property owners and visitors, and  
 
WHEREAS  Having the DDA office downtown would give staff close proximity to 

events, activities and happenings downtown,  
 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Downtown Development Authority Board 
hereby instruct DDA staff to sign a 2-year lease agreement with property owner Vince Mucci 
for office space at 831 Penniman for $1,300 per month from 9/1/16 to 8/31/17 and $1,350 
per month from 9/1/17-8/31/18. 

 
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 



Thursday, July 14, 2016 Meeting Minutes  
 

6 

 
  

8. Reports and Correspondence 

a. Saxton’s Expenditure Tab 

Staff Director Bruscato gave an updated expenditure report on the Saxton’s 

property.   

Director Frisbie indicated that future expenditure reports should be month to 

month instead of a running tab. 

 
9. Adjournment 

Director Frisbie made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mayor Dwyer. 

 

 MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:30  p.m. 


